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Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
NEIIC «UZBEKINVEST» (In thousands UZS)

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE PREPERATION AND
APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that fairly present the
financial position of the National Export-Import Insurance Company "Uzbekinvest” (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the "Group™") as at 31 December 2017, and results of its activity, cash flows and changes in equity
for the year ended at the date in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for:

. Ensuring the right choice and application of accounting policies;

. Presentation of information, including accounting policy data, in a form that ensures the relevance,
reliability, comparability and comprehensibility of such information;

. Disclosure of additional information in cases where compliance with the requirements of IFRS proves

insufficient for users to understand the impact that certain transactions, as well as other events or
conditions, have on the consolidated financial position and consolidated financial performance of the
Group; and

. Assessment of the Group's ability to continue to operate in the foreseeable future.

Management is also responsible for:

. Development, implementation and operation of an effective and reliable system of internal control in
the Group;
. Keeping records in a form that allows to disclose and explain the transactions of the Group, and to

provide information of sufficient accuracy as of any date on the consolidated financial position of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated financial statements comply with the requirements of IFRS;
. Accounting in accordance with the legislation of the Republic of Uzbckistan and the United Kingdom;
. Taking all reasonably possible measures to ensure the safety of the Group's assets; and
. Identification and prevention of financial and other abuse.

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 were approved by the Group's
management on 30 June 2018.

S

_,.14\’\\“
Q’:\/

o, C,
2" 5 Yo Pn
AR 7 e
7/ f g 7
Prgey V/,; 3
=3 A o
e = D

Asatulla : :[’/i JavievA L.
Deputy /55 Chief Account
<
30 June 2018 e 30 June 2018
Tashkent, Uzbeki Tashkent, Uzbekistan




. Gfa ntThorntOn

An instinct for growth
AO 000 «Grant Thornton»

Pecnybnuxa Ysbexucran,
100128, TawkeHT,

yn. Abas. 1A

Ten.: +998 (71) 244-47-45/46
daxe; +998 (71) 244-47-43

AO “Grant Thornton” LLC
1A, Abay Str.,

Tashkent, 100128,

Republic of Uzbekistan

Tel.: +998 (71) 244-47-45/46
Fax: +998 (71) 244-47-43
W: www.gti.org

E: audit@uzqgt.uz

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Founders and the Board of Directors of
National export-impott insurance company
«Uzbekinvest»:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the National Export-Import Insurance
Company "Uzbekinvest" (the "Company™) and its subsidiaries {collectively, the "Group"), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017 and the related consolidated statement of
profit and loss and other comprehensive income, consohidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2017, as well as their consolidated financial performance and their consolidated
cash flows for the year ended on the specified date in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS).

Basis for expressing an opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities
in accordance with these standards are descrbed further in the section "Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements” of our opinion. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
ethical requirements applicable to our audit of consolidated financial statements in the Republic of Uzbekistan,
and we have fulfilled other ethical obligations in accordance with these requirements. We belicve that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Kev audit matters

Key audit issues are 1ssues that, according to our professional judgment, were the most significant for our audit
of financial statements for the current period. These issues were considered in the context of our audit of the
financial statements in general and in the formation of our opinion on this reporting, and we do not express a
separate opinion on these matrers.

Member of Grant Thoronwon Tniermacionad Ll



Kev audit matters(Continued)

Kev audit matters

What audit procedures were performed on the

key audit issue

1. Valuation of insurance reserves

The Company’s insurance reserves, which
mnclude the reserve for outstanding claims and
reserve for unexpired risks, reflect the uncertainey
inherent in the insurance business on the balance
sheet. The estimation of insurance reserves is
complex as it involves a high degree of judgement.
With regards to the reserve for outstanding
claims, the claims department will set up a loss
reserve upon notfication and after assessing all
the tnformation on the claim which has been
provided. The claims information is then
aggregated and considered as a whole to
determine the total estimate of the ultimate losses
that will be incurred in respect of the msurance
policies underwritten for each line of business.
The modelling for the loss reserves takes into
account the claims  experience, claims
development, market conditons, as well as
matters that are sensitive to the legal, economic,
and various other factors and uncertainties, in
order to arrive at the estimation of the ultmate
losses. The reserve for unexpired risk 1s computed
based on the premiums booked, nature of the
policies, and generally accepted valuation basis.
Management reviews the claims and premiums,
the inputs into the models, and they also engage a
certified independent acruary to review the
estimation of ultimate losses and reserve for
unexpired risks to ensure that the insurance
reserves are adequate.

2. Exchange rate difference on
transactions in foreign currency

We paid special attengon to this issue in
connecton with the implementaton of the
currency reform. According to the Decree of the
President of the Republic of Uzbekistan No.UP-
5177 of the 27 of September 2017 "On Priority
Measures for the Liberalization of Monetary
Policy”, the economy of the country, basically
devalued the nanonal currency to foreign
currencies, 1 US dollar amounted 8,100 Uzbek
soums. Measures have been taken to freely
convert the national currency to foreign
currencies, and restrictive measures for the use of
foreign currency have been simplified.

In auditing the insurance reserves, we
petformed test of controls, test of dertails, and
analytical review procedures on the Company’s
insurance reserves. We also compared the acmaral
valuation methodologies and assumptions used by
mapagement with mdustry  data, and aganst
recognized actuarial practices. Our procedures
included a review of the assumpuons used by the
independent qualified certifying actuary and rationale
for conclusions made thereon, an assessment of the
consistency  of valuaton methodologies applied
against prior years, and an assessment of whether
changes made to the actuarial models are 1n line with
our understanding of business developments, and
our expectations derived from market experience. In
addition, we performed an independent analysis and
re-computation of the insurance reserves of selected
classes of business. Qur focus of the independent
analysis and re- compuration were over the largest
and most uncertam reserves. We also compared our
independent analysts to those performed by the
management and obtained explanations of significant
differences noted, if any.

We divided the Group's liabilities and assets by
currency.

We tested (on a selective basis) the accrual of
income and expenses set in foreign currency and
the application of the exchange rate at the ume of
reflection as to whether this was done properly.

Income and expenses are reflected in Uzbek
soums at the ume of accrual.

Before the adoption of the devaluation, 1 US
dollar was 4210.35 Uzbek soums.




RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCL
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRS and for the internal control system that management considers necessaty to prepare
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In the preparation of  the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
ability of the Group to continue to operate continuously, for disclosure, as appropriate, of information relating
to business continuity and for reporting based on the assumption of continuing operations, unless the
management intends to liquidate the Group, cease its activities or when it lacks any other real alternative, except
for liquidation or discontinuance of acuvities. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES OF FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue auditor’s report that contains our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing always reveals material misstatement 1f 1t exists.
Misstatements may result from fraud or error and are considered material if it can be reasonably assumed that
individually or collectively they may affect the economic decisions of users made on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we use professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the planning and performance of the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovetride of internal
control.

*  Obrain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entty’s internal control.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obrain sufficient approprate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the enuties and
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

*  Weare responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We are required to comimunicate with people responsible for corporate governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identifv during our audit.




We are also required to provide people responsible for corporate governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, reiated safeguards.

Karimov N.F

Partner:

Audit manag Usmanov L.A.
“Grant Thornton” LLC
Tashkent, the Republic of Uzbekistan

30 June 2018



Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

NEIIC «<UZBEKINVEST» (In thousands UZS)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSSES AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
Notes Year ended 31 Year ended 31
®S  December 2017  December 2016
INSURANCE:
Written insurance premiums 5 190 191 966 134 249 529
Reinsurance premiums ceded 5 {59 681 988) (52 663 159)
Written premiums, net of reinsurance 130 509 978 81 586 370
Change_ln provision for uneamed premiums, 5.21 (16 406 512) 914 183
net of reinsurance
Eamed insurance premiums, net 114 103 466 82 500 554
Claims paid, gross 6 {56 955 454) (34 181 515)
Claims on reinsured risks ] 2227943 2820414
Changef; in provision for insurance losses, 6,22 (45 128 964) (11 981 144)
net of reinsurance
Net amount of claims incurred {99 856 475) (43 342 245)
Commission income 4 633 266 6 800 689
Acquisition costs {18 129 877) (19 277 494)
Change in deferred acquisition costs 18 1 556 304 3208823
Results of insurance activity 2 306 684 29 890 327
INVESTMENTS:
Investmentincome from financial assets at fair 7 3 067 248 2128 744
value through profitor loss
Interestincome from loans and deposits in banks 9814 136 6497 511
SP:I):Slon for impairment of investments available-for- 13 (1733 558) )
Dividend income 5705 249 3 066 902
Income from share of profitin associates 473 546 (97 983)
Other (expenses )income from investing acitivities 709 585 367 847
Results of investing activity 18 036 206 11963 021
OTHER:
Net gain on foreign exchange operations 163 203 582 14 093 205
Administrative and operating expenses 8 (37 202 235) {31 698 895)
Provision for impairment of other assets (3237 212) -
Otherincome 3012816 2225623
Results of other activity 125 776 951 (15 380 067)
PROAT BEFORE INCOME TAX 146 119 841 26 473 280
Income taxexpense 9 (300 788) (1 634 160)
NET PROAT FOR THE YEAR 145819 053 24839120
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 144 766 223 24 820 064
Non-controlling interest 1052 830 19 055
145 819 053 24 839 120
Q—r"%
4
Javliev A. 1. /
Chief Accountant
30 June 2018
Tashkent, Uzbekistan

The accompanying notes on pages 13 - 57 are an integral part of the current financial statements.




Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

NEIIC «<UZBEKINVEST»

(In thousands UZS)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

NET PROAT FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

tems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations
OTHER COMPREHENS IVE INCOME
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

December 2017 December 2016
145 819 053 24 839120
244 429 500 21 062 969
244 429 500 21 062 969
390 248 553 45 902 088
3891985723 45883 033
1052 830 19055

390 248 553 45 902 088

< 2 %
Javliev A. L
Chief Accountant

30 June 2018
Tashkent, Uzbekistan

30 June 2018
Tashkent, Uzbekist

The accompanying notes on pages 13 - 57 are an integral part of the current financial statements.




Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

NEIIC «(UZBEKINVEST» (In thousands UZS)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Notes 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Deposits in banks

Financial assets at fair value

through profitorloss

investments available for sale
Investments in associates
Reinsurer's share in provision for
uneamed premiums

Reinsurer's share in provision for
insurance losses

Loans and receivables

Insurance and reinsurance receivable
Property and equipment and Intangible
assets

Deferred acquisition costs

Cther assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Insurance and reinsurance payable
Provision for uneamed premiums
Provision for insurance losses
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Share capital
Reserve for investment purposes
Special insurance reserve
Translation reserve
Stabilization reserve
Retained eamnings

Total equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Non-controlling interest
TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

10
11

12
13
14

21

22

15
16

17

18
19

20
21
22

23

24
24
24
24
24

25

19429 467 7225149
331 365896 144 099 346
415005 320 163 222 342

48 588 892 38 563 324

1284 365 784 432
34 504 413 34183732
3839776 4522 435
1996 533 1632150

14 429009 3825 367

14 439 901 15243 588

13232238 11 675934

7 894727 8392017
906 010 537 433 369 816

16 961 862 3019848

67 030622 50 303 427

89818 893 45 372 588

2581353 2 996 261

14 887 574 7196 012
191 280 304 108 888 135

19 257 325 19 257 325

15454 598 15 454 598

4 926 898 4 926 898
404 853 500 160 424 000
2471529 3141 237
264 538 658 119102 728
711 502 508 322 306 785
3227725 2174 895
714730 233 324 481 680
906 010 537 433 369 816

(%/
Javliev A. 1. /
Chief Accountan

30 June 2018
Tashkent, Uzbekistan

The accompanying notes on pages 13 - 57 are an integral part of the current financial statements.
10
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Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
NEIIC «<UZBEKINVEST» (In thousands UZS)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

N Year ended 31 Year ended 31

December 2017 December 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Premiums received 5 190 191 866 131 804 385
Reinsurance premiums paid 5 (59 681 988) (53 987 987)
Claims paid 6 {56 955 454) (35983 774)
Claims received on reinsured risks 6 2227 943 2986 262
Commission revenue received 4 633 266 6 832 361
Acquisition cost (18 129 876) (19 277 494)
Administrative and operating expenses paid 8 (37 202 235) (28 392 107)
Provision for impairment of other assets (3237 212) -
Income tax paid ] (300 788} (1262 314)
Other revenue received 3012816 2 357 555
Cash flows from operating activities before
changes in operating assets and liabilities 24 558 438 18 803 942
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
increase in other assets 7796727 411 886
increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 7943 063 4 380 001
Net cash inflow from operating activities 40 298 228 23595 829
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from/(investment in) loans and receivabies (364 383) 1859 850
Netinvestmentin deposits in banks (187 266 550) (26 174 698)
Netinvestment in/(proceeds from) financial assets atfair
value through profit or loss 150 516 951 (3 487 868)
Prowvision for impairment of available-for-sale investments 13 (1733 558) -
Purchase of property and equipment and intangible assets (3228675) {5 139 086)
Purchase of investments available forsale (10236 137) (4 687 726)
Proceeds from redemption or sale of investments available
for sale 210 569 250 000
Interest received 9814136 8626 254
Proceeds from sale of property and eqmpment 114 475 69 127
Dividend income received 5705 249 3 066 902
Net cash used in investing activities {36 467 923) (25 517 244)
CASH FLOWS FROMFINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividends paid - (3 573 694)
Net cash used in financing activities - (3573 694)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate on cash
and cash equivalents 8 374013 376 151
Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents 12 204 318 (5118 8957)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of the year 10 7 225 149 12 344 106
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of the year 10 19 429 467 7 225 149

Javiiev AL 1.
Chief Accountant,

30 June 2018 AR 30 June 2018
Tashkent, Uzbekistan Tashkent, Uzbekistan

The accompanying notes on pages 13 - 57 are an integral part of the current financial statements.
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Consolidated Financial statements for the yeatr ended 31 December 2017
NEIIC «<UZBEKINVEST» (In thousands UZS)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The national export-import insurance company "Uzbekinvest” (the "Company") is a legal entity of the Republic
of Uzbekistan. It was created by the decision of the Cabinet of Ministers on 13 April 1994 as the National
Insurance Company "Uzbekinvest" and started its activity on 1.June 1994. In accordance with the Decree of
the President of 18 February 1997, the National Insurance Company "Uzbekinvest" was transformed into the
National Export-Import Insurance Company "Uzbekinvest", with the increase of the share capital and the
expansion of the volume of operations. The company provides protection of national exporters of the Republic
of Uzbekistan from political, commercial and business risks and assists in the development of international
matkets. The company provides property insurance, accident insurance, construction insurance, life insurance
and other types of insurance. The Company operates in accordance with license No. 00144 dated 29 June 2010
for the implementation of insurance activities issued by the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Uzbekistan.

The company is registeted at the following address: 2, Abdulla Kodiriy Str., Tashkent, the Republic of
Uzbekistan 100017

Current location: 6, Chupon Ota Str., Tashkent, the Republic of Uzbekistan 100097

The Company is owned by the Ministty of Finance of the Republic of Uzbekistan (hereinafter referred to as
"MF"} and the National Bank for Foteign Economic Activity of the Republic of Uzbekistan (hereinafter
referred to as "NBU"), whose shares in the Company's capital are 83.33% and 16.67%, respectively. The parent
company of the Group is the Government of the Republic of Uzbekistan.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had 14 branches (31 December 2016: 14) that carty out insurance
activities in the territory of the Republic of Uzbekistan.

The Company is the patent company of the insurance group (the "Group"), which consists of the following
entities consolidated in these financial statements:

Share of

participation/votes,

% :
Subsidiary Country 2016 2015 Industry
Uzbekinvest International
Insurance Company Limited Great Britain 100 100 Insurance of political risks
Uzbekinvest Sarmoyalari Uzbekistan 100 100 Investment
Uzbekinvest Hayot Uzbekistan 80 80 Life insurance
Uzbekinvest Assistance Uzbekistan 100 100 Insurance service agency
Bosh Bino Ishlatmasi Uzbekistan 75 75 Service
Bulungur Uzumzorlari Uzbekistan 99 99 Gardening

Uzbekinvest International Insurance Company Limited ("UIIC") was incorporated in November 1994 in Great
Britain with a share capital of 100,000 thousand US dollars. In December 1995, UIIC received permission from
the UK Department of Trade and Industry to carry out insurance activities in the UK and provides insurance
services for international investments in the economy of the Republic of Uzbekistan against political risks. In
2009, the shareholders agreed to reduce the total amount of the share capital of UIIC from USD 100,000
thousand to USD 80,000 thousand. In 2009, both UIIC shareholders, the Uzbekinvest National Export-Import
Insurance Company (80% sharecholder) and American International Underwriters Overseas Ltd (20%
shareholder), reduced their investments by 20,000 thousand US dollars each. As 2 result, the National Export-
Import Insurance Company "Uzbekinvest" became the sole owner of UIIC. In 2010, the National Expott-
Import Insurance Company "Uzbekinvest" reduced its share in the authotized capital of UIIC by 10,000
thousand US dollars, thereby reducing the total amount of the share capital from 60,000 thousand US dollars
to 50,000 thousand US dollars.

13




Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
NEIIC «<UZBEKINVEST» (In thousands UZS)

2 BASIC PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reportng Standards ("IFRS").

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Group will continue
to operate in the foreseeable future. Management and shareholders intend to further develop the Group's
business in the Republic of Uzbekistan and the United Kingdom. Management believes that the assumption
of continuing operations is applicable to the Group due to a satisfactory capital adequacy ratio.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of Uzbek Soums ("UZS"), unless otherwise
indicated. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with historical cost
principles, except for certain financial instruments that are carried at cost at revaluation or fair value at each
reporting date, as explained below.

Historical cost is usually determined on the basis of the fair value of the consideration transferred in exchange
for goods and services.

The fair value reflects the price that would be received upon the sale of the asset or paid when transferring the
obligation under a regular transaction between market participants as of the valuation date, whether such price
is directly observable or received by calculation using another valuation technique. In assessing the fair value
of an asset or liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants consider such characteristics when forming the price of the asset or liability as of the valuation
date. For fair value measurement and / or disclosure with respect to fair value measurement, the fair value in
these consolidated financial statements is determined in this way.

In addition, for the purposes of preparing financial statements, the fair value is classified on the basis of a fair
value hierarchy (Level 1, 2 or 3). The levels correspond to the possibility of direct determination of fair value
based on market data and reflect the significance of the initial data used in estimating the fair value as a whole:

e  The Level 1 inputs are non-quoted adjustments in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group has access to at the time of valuation; .

e  The Level 2 inputs are not quotations determined for Level 1, but ate observed in the market for an asset
or liability either directly or indirectly;

¢ The Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs on the asset or liability.

The Group presents items of the consolidated statement of financial position as a whole in the order of
liquidity. The breakdown of repayment or repayment data within 12 months after the date of the consolidated
statement of financial position (short-term) and for more than 12 months after the date of the consolidated
statement of financial position (long-term) is disclosed in Note 28.

Functional currency

Items included in the Group's consolidated financial statements are measured in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates ("functional currency"). The Group's functional currency
is Uzbek Soum ("UZS"). The currency of presentation of these financial statements of the Group is Uzbek
Soum. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand sums, unless otherwise specified.

Offsetting

The financial asset and financial liability are offset and the net consolidated amount is reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset the
amounts recognized in the balance sheet and intends either to offset the net amount or to realize the asset and
fulfill the obligation simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the consolidated income statement,
unless required or permitted by the accounting standard or an appropriate interpretation, with such cases
separately disclosed in the Group's accounting policies.

The main provisions of the accounting policy are given below.

14



Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
NEIIC «UZBEKINVEST» (In thousands UZS)

2 BASIC PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuation)

Recognition of interest income and expenses

Interest income on financial assets is recognized if it is probable that the Group will receive economic benefits
and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured. Interest income and expenses are recognized on an
accrual basis and are calculated using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a method
that involves calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability (or a group of financial
assets/group of financial liabilities), as well as relating interest income or interest expense to the relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the discount rate for the expected future cash inflows (including all payments
received or made on the debt instrument that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, as well as
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) for an expected period until the debt instrument is repaid
or (if applicable) for a shorter period to the book value at the time the debt instrument is accepted for
accounting.

If a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written off (partially written off) as a result of
impairment, interest income is determined taking into account the interest rate used to discount future cash
flows for the purpose of calculating impairment losses.

Recognition of dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive dividends is
established (if there is a high probability that the Group will receive economic benefits and the amount of
income can be reliably determined).

Insurance operations

IFRS 4 "Insurance Contracts” defines the accounting policy applied to insurance operations. The development
and assimilation of this standard includes two stages.

During the first stage, this standard prescnbes the requirements for the presentation of insurance contracts in
the financial statements of the insurer untl the International Accounting Standards Board has completed the
second stage of its project regarding insurance contracts. In particular, at the fitst stage, an enterprise can
continue to use local accounting policies for insurance transactions in financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS, provided that the principles of adequacy of insurance reserves and disclosure of
information established in IFRS are observed.

The second phase of the project, currently under implementation, should develop a unified international
accountng principles for insurance contracts.

The Group's accounting policies for insurance contracts described below have been determined in accordance
with TFRS of 1st stage — IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, and the Group has decided to continue to use the

statutory accounting policies for insurance transactions in the financial statements prepared in accordance with
IFRS.

Insurance contract

Insurance contracts are contracts whereby the Group (the insurer) assumes a significant insurance risk from
the policyholder, agreeing to provide compensation to the policyholder in the event that a specified future
event, the occurrence of which is uncertain (an insurance event), will adversely affect the policyholder and/or
its financial position. As a general recommendation, the Group determines whether it has a significant
insurance risk compared to the potential insurance coverage of the amount payable if the insured event does
not occur,

After the contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract unil it expires,
even if the level of insurance risk decreases significantly during this petiod.
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2 BASIC PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuation)

Description of insurance products

The group offers insurance products that include all general insurance risks. The main business of the Group
18:

. Insurance of transport, including third-party liability insurance;
. Property insurance; ]
. Personal accident insurance;

. Insurance of politcal risks;

. Life insurance.

Shott-term insurance contracts include insurance for transport, property, accident insurance, voluntary medical
insurance and short-term life insurance contracts.

Short-term insurance contracts

Transport and property insurance guarantees that the Group's customers are paid compensation for damage
caused to their property, or their financial interests are covered. Customers are also insured against losses
incurred as a result of their inability to use the insured property in their economic activities as a result of the
occurrence of an insured event (business interruption).

Liability insurance contracts protect the Group's customers against the risk of harm to third parties as a result
of their legal activites. Reimbursable losses include both contractual and non-contractual events. Typical
protection is designed for employers who are legally responsible for paying compensation to injured employees
ot the company (the employer's liability), as well as for individual and business clients who are responsible for
paying compensation to a third party for personal injury or property damage (social responsibility).

Personal accident insurance protects the customer from the risk of injury (injury) or other accidents. Voluntary
health insurance was developed to provide the Group's customers with payment for medical services. These
services are considered to be insurance only if, at the tdme of entry into force of the agreement, the Group
cannot be sure of the probability, imeliness and amount of cash outflows related to this type of insurance.

Insurance of political risks protects the activity of clients and assets of companies-investors or companies
engaged in business activities in the Republic of Uzbekistan. The cover provides for investments in
infrastructure and trade operations, which are insured against political risks in Uzbekistan with respect to
investors and creditors. The investment cover includes confiscation, expropriation and nationalization,
Coverage of trade operations includes long-term refusals to fulfill obligations and illegal withdrawal of
guarantees.

Long-term insurance contracts

Long-term life insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms provide for insurance of events related to
a person's life (for example, death or survival) for a long-term period. Premiums are recognized as income
when they are payable by the owner of the contract. Bonuses are reflected undl the commission is deducted.
Rewards ate recorded as expenses as they arise.

Insurance premiums

Premiums under insurance contracts are accounted for as issued at the time of the commencement of the
operation of insurance contracts and relate to income proportionally during the validity of insurance policies.

Unearned premium reserve

The unearned premium reserve is created in the amount of the part of the premium issued under the insurance
contract relating to the remaining term of the insurance contract as of the reporting date and is proportionally
calculated by the "pro rata temporis" method.
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2 BASIC PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuation)

Claims

Claims and related settlement costs are recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
incurred on the basis of an assessment of the liability for the amount of payment to the policyholder or third
party, less subrogation. Subrogation is the right to demand from a third party a part ot the entire amount of a
claim settlement.

Deferred acquisition costs

Acquisition costs are commissions, salaries and other direct costs for attracting insurance, the amount of which
varies and depends on the amount of premiums on newly signed and renewed contracts. Acquisition costs are
deferred and amortized over the period for which the respective premiums will be earned. Deferred acquisition
costs (DAC) are calculated separately by type of activity and are reviewed in each reporting period to verify
their recoverability.

Allowance for losses

The loss reserve is an estimate of the liabilities for futute insurance payments and includes a reserve of claimed
losses (RCL) and a reserve of incurted but not settded losses (RINSL).

RCL is created with respect to existing claims that were not settled as of the reporting date. The valuation is
based on information received by the Company during the investigation of the insured event. RINSL as a
whole is determined by summing up the RINSL calculated for each type of insurance according to the
requirements of the MF, which stipulate that the amount of RINSL in any case should not be less than 10
percent of the amount of the basic insurance premium under general insurance (reinsurance) contracts for the
period of twelve months prior to the reporting dates.

The share of the reinsurer in the loss reserve is calculated in accordance with the share of the reinsurer under
the relevant reinsurance contract. The share of reinsurers in RCL is accounted for in reinsurance assets under
RCL until the full payment by the reinsurer of the insurance payment.

Test for the adequacy of the obligation. At each reporting date, an adequacy test is conducted to ensure the
adequacy of contractual obligations, net of related deferred acquisition costs (DAC). During these tests, the
most accurate available estimates of future contractual cash flows, claims settlement costs, administrative
expenses, and investment returns from assets supporting these obligations are used.

Any deficiencies are immediately reflected in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, initially by
writing off the DAC, subsequently by creating a provision for losses arising from the adequacy test.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group
when the Group becomes a party to the contract in respect of the related financial instrument. The Group
recotds the acquisition and sale of financial assets and liabilities on a settlement date, which are regular. Standard
purchase or sale transactions are the purchase or sale of financial assets that require the delivery of assets within
the time limits established by regulatory enactments or market practices.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); Available-
for-sale (AFS); Loans and receivables. The assignment of financial assets to a particular class depends on their
characteristics and acquisition objectives and occurs at the time they ate taken into account.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset is classified as a FVTPL, if it is either intended for trading or is defined as a FVTPL at the
time of initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for sale if it;
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2 BASIC PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuation)

e  [s purchased with the main purpose of reselling it in the near future;

e At initial accounting, is part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed by the Group as a
single portfolio, for which there is a recent history of short-term purchases and resale; or

e Is aderivative that is not classified and is not used as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset that is not held for sale can be designated as a control document at the time of acceptance to
the account if:

e  The applicaton of this classification eliminates or significantly reduces the imbalance in the valuadon or
accounting of assets or liabilities that might otherwise arise;

e A financial asset is part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or a group of financial assets and
liabiliies that is managed and evaluated based on a fair value in accordance with a documented tisk
management strategy ot investment strategy of the Company and information about such a group of
financial assets is This basis; or
The financial liability is part of a tool containing one or more embedded derivatives and IAS 39
"Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement"” permits the instrument to be classified as a whole
(asset or liability) at fair value with recognition of its change in the income statement.

FVTPL financial assets recorded at fair value reflecting the revaluation in profit or loss. Net profit or loss

incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset, are recognized in the line "Investment

income" in the statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets available-for-sale

Financial assets of the category "AFS" are those non-defivative financial assets that are designated as available-
for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) investments held to maturity, (c) financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss.

Shares and fixed-term bonds traded on organized markets are classified as "available-for-sale” and are recorded
at fair value. The Group also has investments in shares that do not circulate on the organized market, which
are also classified as financial assets of the category of the AFS and are accounted for at fair value (as the
Company's management believes that fair value can be measured reliably). Income and expenses arising from
changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income as part of the investment revaluation
reserve, with the exception of those that are permanent in cases of impairment of interest income calculated
using the effective interest method, dividend income and foreign exchange gains that are recognized in profit
or Losses. When a financial asset is derecognized or depreciated, the cumulatve gain or loss previously
recognized in the investment revaluation reserve relates to the financial results during the period of disposal or
impairment.

The fair value of monetary assets classified as AFS in foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate as at the reporting date. Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss are
determined based on the amortized cost of the monetary asset. Other exchange differences are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

Investments in equity securities classified as AFS, which are not quoted in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, are carried at cost less any impairment losses identified at the end of each
reporting petiod.

Loans and receivables provided

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables with fixed or determinable payments that ate not traded in an
organized market, including funds in banks, insurance and reinsurance receivables and other financial assets
are classified as "loans and receivables". Loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest method less impairment. Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except
for short-term receivables, interest income on which is insignificant.
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2 BASIC PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuation)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
impaired if there is objective evidence of a decrease in the estimated future cash flows of the asset as a result
of one or more events that occutred after the financial asset was recorded.

For non-traded investments in shares in the category of AFS, an objective evidence of impairment is a
significant or prolonged decline in fair value below the cost of their acquisition.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment may be as follows:

e Significant financial difficuldes of the issuer or counterparty; or

e Violation of the contract, for example, refusal or evasion from payment of interest or ptincipal amount of
debt; or

e Non-payment or delay in payment of interest and principal amount of debt or

e  High probability of bankruptcy or financial reorganization of the borrower; or

e  The disappearance of the active market for this financial asset due to financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as loans and receivables, assets that are not individually
recognized as impaired are also assessed for impairment in the portfolio as a whole. An objective indication of
the depreciation of the portfolio of loans and receivables can be the past experience of the Group in recovering
debts, increasing the number of delays in repaying porttfolio debts, as well as pronounced changes in the national
and local economy, which are usually accompanied by a default on payments.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment loss is calculated as the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate for the financial asset.

For financial assets carried at cost, the impairment loss is defined as the difference between the carrying amount
of the asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market interest rate
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversible in future periods.

An impairment loss directly reduces the carrying amount of all financial assets, with the exception of loans and
receivables, the reduction in value of which is due to the formadon of a provision. If loans are recognized as
uncollectible, loans and receivables are also written off against the reserve. The reimbursements of amounts
previously written off are credited against the reserve account. Changes in the provision are recognized in profit
or loss.

If a financial asset classified AFS is recognized as impaired, the gain or loss accumulated in other comprehensive
income is recognized in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss on a financial asset carried at amortized cost
decreases and such decrease can be objectvely related to an event occurring after the impairment was
tecognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is recovered through the profit or loss account. At that,
the carrying amount of financial assets as of the date of restoration of an impairment loss cannot exceed the
amortized cost, which would be reflected in case if the impairment was not recognized.

Impairment losses on equity securities classified as AFS previously recognized in profit or loss is not reversed.
Any increase in fair value of these assets after recognition of the impairment loss is recognized directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of revaluation reserve investments.

In the case of debt securities classified as AFS impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or
loss if the increase in fair value of financial investments can be objectively linked to an event occurring after
the recognition of impairment loss.
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Write-off of loans and receivables

If it is not possible to recover loans and receivables, including by foreclosure, they are written off against the
provision for impairment. Write-off of loans and receivables occurs after the Company's management has taken
all possible measures to recover the amounts due to the Group, and after the Company has realized the available
collateral. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are recorded as a reduction in the cost of
impairment of financial assets in the income statement during the recovery period.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes financial assets only in the event of termination of contractual rights over them to
cash flows or in the event of the transfer of a financial asset and the related risks and benefits to the other party.
If the Gtoup does not transfer and does not retain all the main risks and rewards of ownership of the asset and
continues to control the transferred asset, it continues to reflect its share in the asset and the associated possible
liabilities for possible payment of the related amounts. If the Group retains substantally all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the transferred financial asset, it continues to account for this financial asset, and the proceeds
from the transfer reflect a secured loan.

When a financial asset is fully written down, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the
amount of consideration received and receivable, as well as the cumulative gain or loss recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, relates to profit or loss.

If the recognition of a financial asset is not completely discontinued (for example, when the Group retains the
opportunity to repurchase part of the transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of
the financial asset between the part that it continues to recognize in the continuing participation and the part
that it no longer recognizes Based on the relative values of the fair values of these parts as of the date of transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the written-off part and the amount of consideration
received for the written-off part, as well as any profits or losses accumulated and distributed to it recognized in
other comprehensive income, relate to profit or loss. Income or expenses recognized in other comprehensive
income are also distributed in proportion to the fair value, withheld and written-off parts.

Issued financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as an obligation or capital. Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as
financial liabilities or capital based on the substance of the relevant contract, as well as the definitions of the
financial liability and equity instrument.

Equity instruments. An equity instrument is any contract that confirms the right to a share of the company's
assets after deducting all its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized in the amount
of proceeds from them, net of direct costs incurred for their issue.

The repayment of the Company's own equity instruments is deducted directly from the capital. The profit or
loss arising from the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own shares is not recognized in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities, including insurance and reinsurance payables and other financial liabilities, are initially

recorded at fair value, net of transaction costs. Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost.
The interest expense is calculated using the effective intetest method.

The effective interest method is used to calculate the amortized cost of a financial liability and the allocation
of interest expense in the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the discount rate of the expected future
cash payments (including all payments received or effected on the debt instrument that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) for the expected period until the
financial liability is paid or (if applicable) for a shorter period to the book value at the time of its adoption.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities only in case of redemption, cancellation or expiration of
requirements on them. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another obligation to the same creditor
under substantially different terms, or the terms of the existing liability substantially change, such an exchange
or change is accounted for as a write-off of the original obligation and recognition of a new liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that is derecognized and the consideration paid
or receivable is recognized in profit or loss.

Investments in associates

The associate is the entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in decisions relating to the financial and economic activity of the enterprise, but is not control or
joint control in respect of such activities.

Assets and liabilities and financial performance of associates are included in these consolidated financial
statements on a participatory basis, unless the financial investment or part of it is classified as held for sale and
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5. For the equity investment method, investments in associates are
initially recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and subsequently adjusted to
including the Group's share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. In the event
that the Group's share of the loss of the associate exceeds the Group's investment in that associate (including
any long-term investments that are in fact part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group
ceases to recognize its share of the loss. Additional losses are recognized only in cases where the Group has a
legal obligation or in accordance with the rules of business turnover to reimburse the corresponding share of
losses or if the Group has made payments on behalf of the dependent enterprise.

Investments in an associate ate accounted for using the equity method from the date on which it becomes an
associate. When an investment in an associate is acquired, the positive difference between the acquisition cost
of the investment and the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
entity is goodwill, which is included in the carrying amount of such investments. If the Group's share in the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired exceeds the cost of acquisition of the investment
after the revaluation, the excess is immediately recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the investment
is acquired.

To determine whether recognition of an impairment loss on the Group's investment in associates it is applied
the requirements of 1AS 39. If necessary, the carrying value of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment according to IAS 36 "Impairment of assets" as a whole by comparing its recoverable amount (the
highest value of the value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. A recognized
impairment loss reduces the carrying amount of the investment. Reversals of such impairment loss is
recognized in accordance with IAS 36 in cases where the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

The Group discontinues the application of the equity method from the date that the investment ceases to be
an associate ot when the investment satisfies the recognition criteria as held for sale. If the Group maintains a
share in the former associate which is a financial asset, then this interest is measured at its fair value at that
date, and the fair value of the investment is deemed to be the fair value at the time of initial recognition as a
financial asset in accordance with IAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of an associate as at the
date of termination of the equity method of accounting and the fair value of all the remaining Interest and all
proceeds from the retirement of a part of the interest in the associate is accounted for in determining the profit
and loss from the sale of the associate. In addition, all amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in the part relating to the retiring associate are accounted for by the Group in the same manner as
would be required if the associate independently sold the related assets and liabilities. Accordingly, if 2 gain or
loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss when the related
assets ot liabilities are sold, the Group reclassifies profit or loss from equity to profit or loss (as reclassified
adjustment) at the ime of termination of the use of the equity method Participation.
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When the Group teduces its intetest in an associate but continues to apply the equity method, a portion of the
profit or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income and attributable to such reduction in the
patticipatory interest is reclassified to profit or loss if such gains or losses are reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

If the Group member entity conducts transactions with an associate, the gains and losses arising from
transactions with the associate are recognized in the consolidated financial statements of the Group only to the
extent of the interest in the associate that does not belong to the Group.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, unrestricted current and deposit accounts with banks with an
original maturity of less than three months.

Deposits in banks

In the normal course of business, the Group disburses funds and provides deposits to banks for various
petiods. Amounts due from banks are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Amounts due from banks are recorded net of any allowance for
Impairment.

Accounts receivable on insurance and reinsurance

The insurance receivable is recognized upon receipt of the relevant income and is measured at initial recognition
at the fair value of the funds receivable. After initial recognition, the insurance receivables are measured at
amorttized cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amount of insurance receivables is the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
insurance receivables is assessed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recovered and the impairment loss is recognized in the income statement.

The termination of recognition of accounts receivable for insurance is carried out when the criteria for
derecognition of financial assets are met.

Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, the Group transfers insurance risks to reinsurance. Reinsurance assets
represent funds receivable from reinsurance companies. The recoverable amounts are estimated in the same
way as the unearned premium reserve and the reserve of losses and losses settlement costs and in accordance
with the reinsurance contract.

The impairment assessment is carried out at each reporting date or more frequently if there are indications of
impairment during the reporting year. Impairment arises when there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to recover the amounts receivable from the reinsurer under the terms of the contract, and when
the impact on them can be reliably measured. An impairment Joss is recognized in the income statement.

The agreements transferred for reinsurance do not release the Group from liabilities to the insured.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company also assumes a risk in connection with reinsurance under
general insurance contracts. Premiums and losses for accepted reinsurance are recognized as income and
expenses in the same way as income and expenses for direct insurance, taking into account reinsurance classes.

Bonuses and payments are presented separately for both outgoing and incoming reinsurance. The termination
of recognition of reinsurance assets and liabilities is carried out when the contractual obligations are fulfilled or
expired or when the contract is transferred to a third party.
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Fixed assets and intangible assets

Fixed assets and intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation and amortization are charged for the purpose of writing down fixed assets and intangible assets
during their useful life. Depreciation is accrued on the basis of the method of uniform write-off of cost using
the following annual rates:

Buildings and other real estate 5%
Transport 15 %
Computers 20%
Other 15-20 %
Intangible assets 15 %

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the carrying amount of fixed assets and intangible assets
exceeds their replacement cost. In case of excess of the book value of fixed assets and intangible assets of their
replacement value, the Company reduces the carrying amount of fixed assets and intangible assets to their
replacement value.

The gain or loss arising from the sale or disposal of an asset is recognized as the difference between the sale
price and the carrying amount of the asset in the income statement.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current income tax

The amount of expenses for income tax in the current period is determined taking into account the amount of
taxable profit received for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit recorded in the income statement, as
it does not include items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's current tax expense is calculated using tax rates that are
effective during the repotting petiod.

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is provided on the basis of the balance sheet method of accounting and reptesents income tax
claims or liabilies accrued on the difference between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and the
corresponding tax records used to calculate taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for
all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recorded to reflect the likelihood of future taxable
profits for offsetting the related deferred tax assets.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the tax benefit will be obtained sufficient to recover the asset in whole or in part.

Deferred taxes are calculated at rates that are expected to apply in the petiod when the Liability is settled or the
asset s sold. Deferred income tax expense is charged to the income statement, except when they relate to items
that are directly attributable to other comprehensive income, in which case deferred taxes are also recognized
in other comprehensive income.

The assessment of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences of the Group's intentons (as
of the end of the reporting period) with respect to how to recover or pay off the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities.

Current tax and deferred income tax ate recognized in profit or loss unless they relate to items that are directly
recognized in other comprehensive income or equity.
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In the Republic of Uzbekistan there are requirements for the calculation and payment of various taxes
applicable to the activities of the Group. These taxes are included in operating expenses in the statement of
income.

Accounts payable on insurance and reinsurance

Accounts payable for insurance includes advances received, debts to policyholders for claims and
reimbursement for canceled contracts and debts to agents and brokers, as well as advances received from
insurers and reinsurers.

Accounts payable for reinsurance includes net indebtedness for reinsurance. Indebtedness for reinsurance
includes premiums transferred to reinsurance, reimbursement of premiums accepted for reinsurance for
canceled contracts and claims for accepted reinsurance. Accounts payable for insurance and reinsurance are
recorded at amortized cost.

Reserves

Reserves are recognized when the Group has contingent liabilides arising from past events that are determined
by law or implied, for the settlement of which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required and the amount of such liabilities can be estimated reliably.

The amount of the provision for future expenses recorded is the best estimate of the amount necessary to settle
the obligations, determined at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
inherent in these obligations. If the amount of the reserve of future expenses is calculated on the basis of the
estimated cash flows for the repayment of liabilities, the reserve of future expenses is defined as the present
value of such cash flows (if the influence of the value of money over time is significant).

If it is expected that the payments necessary to settle the obligations will be partially or fully recovered by a
third party, the related receivables are recognized as assets subject to full assurance that the reimbursement will
be received and if there is an opportunity to reliably estimate the amount of that receivable.

Share capital and dividends

Contributions to the share capital are recorded at cost. Dividends on common shares are reflected as a decrease
in equity in the period in which they were declared. Dividends declared after the balance sheet date are treated
as events after the reporting date in accordance with IAS 10 Events after the Reporting Date ("IAS 10") and
disclosed accordingly.

Foreign currency

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the Group
("foreign currencies™) are accounted for at the exchange rate as of the transaction date. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the UZS at the appropriate current exchange
rate as at the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign cuttencies are recorded at the rate applicable at the
date of the transaction. The gains and losses arising from such translation are included in the net profit / (loss)
on foreign exchange transactions. The exchange rates at the end of the year used by the Company in preparing
the financial statements are as follows:
31 December 31 December

2017 2016
UZS/1 US Dollar 8120.07 3231.48
UZS/1 Euro 9624.72 3419.23
UZS /1 Russian Ruble 139.30 53.10
UZS /1 British Pound Stetling 10850.04 3969.23
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2 BASIC PRINCIPLES OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuation)

Essential assumptions and sources of uncertainty in estimates

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management must make assumptions, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not apparent from other sources.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are based on past experience and other factors that are considered
relevant in the particular circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and associated assumptions are regulatly reviewed. Changes in estimates are recorded in the period
in which the estimate was revised, if the change affects only that period, or in the period in which the estimate
was revised, and in future periods, if the change affects both current and future periods.

Essential assumptions used in applying accounting policies

Below are significant assumptions other than those where there is uncertainty in the estimates (see below) that
the Group's management used in applying the Company's accounting policies and which most significantly
affect the amounts reflected in the financial statements.

Valuation of financial instruments

The Group uses valuation methods that take into account inputs that are not based on observable market data
used in determining the fair value of financial instruments, as well as a detailed analysis of the sensitivity of
estimates with respect to these assumptions. Management believes that the valuation techniques chosen and
the assumptions used are appropriate to determine the fair value of financial instruments.

Investments are recorded at cost

Management cannot reliably estimate the fair value of the Group's investments in equity instruments available
for sale.

3 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
Amendments to IFRSs that affect financial reporting

New and Revised IFRSs Effective for Anhnual
Periods Beginning
On or After

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014 — 2016 Cycle amending IFRS 1 | 1 January 2018
Firsttime Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standatds and 1AS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011)

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration The | 1 January 2018
interpretation addresses foreign cutrency transactions or parts of transactions
where

* thete is consideration that is denominated or priced in a foreign currency

* the entity recognises a prepayment asset or a deferred income liability in respect
of that consideration, in advance of the recognition of the related asset, expense
or income; and

* the prepayment asset ot deferred income lability is non-monetary
Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-Based Payment regarding classification and | 1 January 2018
measurement of share based payment transactions
Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Relating to the different effective | 1 January 2018
dates of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the forthcoming new insurance
contracts standard

Amendments to IAS 40 Investment Property: to state that an entity shall transfer | 1 January 2018
a property to, or from, investment property when, and only when, there is
evidence of a change in use. A change of use occurs if property meets, or ceases
to meet, the definition of investment property. A change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property by itself does not constitute evidence of a
change in use. The paragraph has been amended to state that the list of examples
therein is non-exhaustive
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3 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (Continuation)

New and Revised IFRSs

Effective for Annual
Periods Beginning
On or After

Finalised version of IFRS 9 [IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014)] was issued in
July 2014 incorporating requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment, general hedge accounting and derecognition. This amends
classification and measurement requirement of financial assets and introduces
new expected loss impairment model »

Impairment: The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces an 'expected credit loss'
model for the measurement of the impairment of financial assets, so it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before a credit loss is
recognized »

Hedge accounting: Introduces a new hedge accounting model that is designed to
be more closely aligned with how entities undertake risk management activities
when hedging financial and non-financial risk exposures »

Derecognition: The requirements for the derecognition of financial assets and
liabilities are carried forward from IAS 39

A new measurement category of fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) will apply for debt instruments held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets

A new impairment model based on expected credit losses will apply to debt
instruments measured at amottised costs of FVTOCI, lease receivables, contract
assets and certain written loan commitments and financial guarantee contract

1 January 2018

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to the additional hedge
accounting disclosures (and consequential amendments) resulting from the
inttoduction of the hedge accounting chapter in IFRS 9

1 January 2018

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers In May 2014, IFRS 15 was
issued which established a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18 Revenue,
IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entited in
exchange for those goods or setvices. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-
step approach to revenue recognition

* Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

* Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

* Step 3: Determine the transaction price

* Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the
contract

* Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance
obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 15

1 January 2018

Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to clarify
three aspects of the standard (identifying performance obligations, principal
versus agent considerations, and licensing) and to provide some transition relief
for modified contracts and completed contracts

1 January 2018
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3 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continuation)

New and Revised IFRSs Effective for Annual
Periods Beginning
On or After

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle amending IFRS 3 | 1 January 2019
Business Combinations, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, IAS 12 Income Taxes and
TIAS 23 Borrowing Costs

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments The interpretation addresses | 1 January 2019
the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments
under TAS 12. It specifically considers

* Whether tax treatments should be considered collectively

* Assumptions for taxation authotities” examinations

* The determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and

* The effect of changes in facts and circumstances

IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognise, measure, present and
disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term 1s 12
months or less or the undetlying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to classify
leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16’s approach to lessor accounting
substantially unchanged from its predecessor, IAS 17

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Relating to prepayment features | 1 January 2019
with negative compensation. This amends the existing requirements in IFRS 9
regarding termination rights in order to allow measurement at amortised cost (of,
depending on the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive
income) even in the case of negative compensation payments

Amendments to IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures: Relating to | 1 January 2019
long-term interests in associates and joint ventures. These amendments clarify
that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to long-term interests in an
associate or joint venture that form patt of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts : 1 January 2021
IFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current fulfillment value
and provides a more uniform measurement and presentation approach for all
insurance contracts. These requirements are designed to achieve the goal of a
consistent, principle-based accounting for insurance contracts. IFRS 17
supetsedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts as of 1 January 2021

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 | Effective date deferred
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011) relating to the treatment of | indefinitely. Adoption
the sale or contribution of assets from and investor to its associate or joint | is still permitted.
venture

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial staterents for the period of initial application and adoption of these new
standards, interpretations and amendments, except for IFRS 9 and IFRS 17, may have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group in the period of initial application.

Management anticipates that IFRS 17 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the annual period beginning 1 January 2021. The application of IFRS 17 may have significant impact on
amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements in respect of its
insurance contracts. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effects of the
application of this standard until the Group performs a detailed review.
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3 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continuation)

The IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments in July 2014, which replaces 1AS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 brings
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments project: classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is eftective for annual petiods beginning on or after.l Janua_ry 2018,
with early application permitted. Except for hedge accounting, retrospective applic?ﬁon is required but
providing comparative information is not compulsoty. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally
applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions. :

The Group has in previous years adopted the first phase of the IFRS 9 with regards to classification
and measurement of financial instruments and plans to adopt the final phase of IFRS 9 (impairment and hedge
accounting) on the required effective date from 1 January 2018.

Based on an analysis of the Group financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 December 2017 on
the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at that date, Directors of the Group have assessed the impact
of IFRS 9 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Based on 31 December 2017 data, the Group has performed a preliminary assessment of potential
impact of adopting IFRS 9 based on the financial instruments as at the date of initial application of IFRS 9 (1
January 2018). The Group estimates the adoption of IFRS 9 to lead to an overall reduction in the Group total
shareholders’ equity of approximately AED 222 million. This reduction is predominately driven by the
impairment requirements of IFRS 9.

This assessment is based on currently available information and may be subject to changes arising
from further reasonable and supportable information being made available to the Group until the Group
presents its first consolidated financial statements that include the date of initial application.

4 IMPORTANT EVALUATION VALUES AND JUDGMENTS IN APPLICATION OF
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company makes accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reflected in the financial
statements and the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the next financial year. Accounting estimates and
judgments are subject to constant analysis and are based on past management experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are considered reasonable under the circumstances. In the process
of applying accounting policies, management also makes use of professional judgments, except for accounting
estimates. Professional judgments that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements and accounting estimates that could result in the need for a significant adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:

Recognition of deferred tax asset. Recognized deferred tax assets represent the amount of income tax that
can be offset against future income taxes. They are reflected in the statement of financial position. A deferred
tax asset is recognized only if the use of the relevant tax deduction is highly probable. This assumes the existence
of temporary differences, the restoration of which is expected in the future, and the existence of sufficient
future taxable profits for the production of deductions. The definition of future taxable profits and the amount
of tax deductions likely to offset in the future is based on the medium-term business plan prepared by the
management and the results of its extrapolation for the future. The business plan is based on management
expectations that are considered reasonable in the circumstances.

Tax legislation. The tax, currency and customs legislation of the Republic of Uzbekistan allows for different
interpretations.

Initial recognition of transactions with related parties. In the ordinaty course of business, the Company
conducts transactions with related parties. Under TAS 39, inital recognition of financial instruments is based
on their fair value. Judgment is used in determining if transactions are valued at market or non-market interest
rates when there is no active market for such transactions. The basis of the judgment is to evaluate similar types
of transactions with unrelated parties and to analyze the effective interest rate.
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Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

NEIIC «UZBEKINVEST» (In thonsands UZS)
7 INVESTMENT INCOME FROM OPERATIONS WITH FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 1.OSS
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2017 December 2016
Interestincome 4 605 192 2474 822
Unrealised gains/(losses) on change in fair value (909 084) 208 246
Investment management expenses
including interest expense (812 709) (505 210)
Losses on the realisation of investments 183 849 {49 115)
Total Investment income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss 3067 248 2128 744
8 ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING EXPENSES
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2017 December 2016
Staff cost and related taxes 10639489 10943 709
Taxes other than income tax 8953 344 6107 114
Charity 5149669 4 503 256
Depreciation and amortisation charges 3917 888 1893917
Rent of premises and utilities expenses 1251390 1013 427
Cffice supplies 708 036 977 813
Bank commission charges 704 832 821 641
Transport expenses 524 393 744 256
Professional services 676 645 734 525
Security senices 424 241 475 300
Business trip expenses 436 112 458 123
Communication 338 937 303 849
Maintenance of property and equipment 471 320 242183
Training 288 482 132 555
Other 2 717 457 2 347 230
Total adminstrative and operating expenses 37 202 235 31 698 895

9 INCOME TAX

The Company prepates tax settlements based on the data of tax accounting carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the legislation of the Republic of Uzbekistan, which may differ from IFRS.

Due to the fact that certain types of expenses are not taken into account for tax purposes, and due to the
availability of non-taxable income, the Company has permanent tax differences. Investment income arising
from government securities and securities quoted on the exchange is exempt from taxaton.

Deterred tax reflects the net tax effect of temporary differences berween the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount that is determined for tax purposes. The temporary
differences available as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 are mainly attributable to vatious methods of accounting
for income and expenses, as well as the recorded value of certain assets.

The income tax rate applicable to the majority of the Company's profits consists of corporate income tax (2017:
7.5%, 2016: 7.5% and 2015: 7.5%) and an infrastructure development tax (2017: 8%, 2016: 8% and 2015 : 8%)
(tax base for infrastructure development tax).
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NEIIC «UZBEKINVEST» {In thousands UZS)
9 INCOME TAX (Continuation)
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2017 December 2016
Currentincome tax 715 696 1262314
Deferred income tax (414 908) 371846
Income tax expense 300 788 1634160
The tax effect of temporary differences as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 is as follows
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Tax effect of deductable temporary differences:
Investments available for sale 735234 293 285
Deposits in banks 86 364 86 364
Provision for impairment of other assets 242 7H -
Proylsu)n for impairment ofinvestments 130 017 _
available-for-sale
Insurance and reinsurance payable 3911971 311721
Total deferred tax assets 5106 377 691 370
Tax effect of deductable temporary differences:
Investments in associates (96 877) {41 836)
Deferred acquisition costs (1618 474) (1 501 897)
Provision for insurance losses (5745 552) (1948 935)
Other {226 827) (194 963)
Total deferred tax liabilities (7 687 730) {3 687 631)
Net deferred tax liabilities {2 581 353) {2 996 261)
10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Balances with banks in foreign currencies 8 685 854 4 373 641
Balances with banks in UZS 10 743 613 2851508
Total cash and cash equivalents 19 429 467 7225149
1 DEPOSITS IN BANKS
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Placements denominated in foreign currencies with
original maturities of more than three months 274777 773 113028 698
Placements denominated in UZS with
original maturities of more than three months 56 588 123 31650 270
Less impairment provision - (579 622)
Total deposits in banks 331 365 896 144 099 346
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(In thousands UZS)

12 FINANCIAL ASSETS REFLECTED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Government bonds
Corporate bonds

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
138 836 096 62 422 829
276 169 224 100 799 514
415 005 320 163222 342

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include investments in foreign currencies held by UIIC.
These securities were managed by Falcon Private Wealth Limited (UK) under an investment management
contract. These investments are deformed into several types of freely convertible currencies with fixed

interest rates, fluctuating between 0.42% and 3.75%.

13 INVESTMENTS AVAILABLE FOR SALE

JSICB Ipak Yuli Bank

JSCB Qishloqg Qurilish Bank

JSCB Microcredit Bank

JSMCB Ipoteka Bank

JSCB "Uzagroexportbank”

JSC Kizilkum Cement

JSC Guarantee Fund

CJSC Azia Invest Bank

JSCB Uzpromstroybank

SK Asko Vostok LLC

JSC Tashsvetmedzaved

JSCB Asaka Bank

SJSC Uzmarkazimpex

SJCS Markazsanoatexport

Baraka Leasing

SJSC Uzinterimpex

SJSC Uzprommashimpex
Kashkadarya Technologic Transporti LLC
JS Nawipakhtosanoat

SJCIC Kafolat

JSCB Hamkorbank

0OJSC Mulk sarmoya brokerlik uyi
JSC Agrobank

JSIC Alskom

Karakul Paxta Tozalash zavodi LLC
Other

Total investments available for sale

Less provision for impairment of investments available-for-sale

Total net investments available for sale

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
18 869 546 15129 625
5294 697 5170 236
3028 156 2735999
6084 223 4 364 301
3606 160 -
2670742 2 356 338
2 000 000 -
1384 681 1384 681
728 358 695 038
696 660 696 660
612954 612 954
648 565 576 502
593 082 593 082
425000 425 000
573135 539916
524 074 524 074
616 402 616 402
670 185 499 525
177 301 177 301
249793 227 160
- 210 569
148 945 148 945
143 987 143 987
96 938 96 938
64 063 64 063
414 803 574 026
50 322 450 38 563 324
(1 733 558) -
48 588 892 38 563 324

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, investments available-for-sale are cartied at market value, less impairment

losses.
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(In thonsands UZS)

14 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Share in the statutory

fund Retained Total as of
Dependent companies Country . December 31,
earnings
In thousands 2017
% of UZS
AlG Uzbekistan Limited United Kingdom 49 127 403 837 345 964 748
Muborakneftegaztrans Uzbekistan 24,2 141 540 178 077 319 617
Total Associates 268 943 1015422 1 284 365
15 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Corporate bonds 800 000 800 000
Corporate loans - 493 083
Loans to employees 1196 533 339 067
Total loans and receivables 1996 533 1632 150
16 RECEIVABLES FOR INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE
31 December
2017 31 December 2016
Amounts due from policyholders 13913712 2672 345
Amounts due from reinsurers 506713 493 765
Amounts due from agents and brokers 8 584 659 257
Total insurance and reinsurance receivable 14 429 009 3 825 367
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Consotidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

NEIIC «UZBEKINVEST» (In thousands UZS)
18 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Deferred acquisition costs as at 1 January 11 675934 8467 111
Additions:
Brokerage and selling commissions 9510175 10 686 890
Payroll and related taxes 7 799 308 € 625914
Advertising and marketing 709 892 588 677
Total 18 019 475 17 911 481
Amortisation:
Brokerage and selling commissions (9 492 658) (9 052 626)
Payroll and related taxes (6 391 600) (5210 728)
Advertising and marketing (578 913) (439 304)
Total (16 463 171} (14 702 658)
Deferred acquisition costs at 31 December 13 232 238 11 675934
Change in deferred acquisition costs
Deferred acquisition cost at 1 January 11 675934 8467 111
Increase in deferred acquisition costs 1 556 304 3208 823
Balance at 31 December 13 232 238 11675934
19 OTHER ASSETS
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Other financial assets
Other accounts receivable 4218655 3135427
Less provision for impairment of other financial assets (1339 307) -
Total other financial assets 2 879 348 3135427
Other non-financial assets
Advances to suppliers 4 660 330 3406 151
Prepaid expenses 722 491 901 930
Tax prepayments 1111819 186 412
Other 848 267 762 097
Less provision for impairment of other non-financial assets (2327 528) -
Total non-financial assets 5015379 5256 590
Total other assets 7894 727 8 392 017
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Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

of reinsurance

NEIIC «<UZBEKINVEST» (In thousands UZS)
20 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ON INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Amounts payable to reinsurers 15757 130 2481524
Amounts payable to insurers 1053 893 307 860
Advances received for the insurance activity - 181 182
Amounts payable to agents and brokers 150 839 49 282
Total insurance and reinsurance payable 16 961 862 3019 848
21 UNEARNED PREMIUMS RESERVE
. Reinsurer's share
Provision for . .
in provision for
unearned Net
. unearned
premiums .
premiums
Provision for unearned premiums as at
1 January 2017 50 303 427 (34 183 730) 16 119 697
Change in provision for unearned 16 727 195 (320 683) 16 406 512
premiums, net of reinsurance
Provision for unearned premiums as at
31 December 2017 67 030 622 {34 504 413) 32526 209
. Reinsurer's share
Provision for L L .
in provision for
unearned Net
. unearned
premiums
premiums
Provision for unearned premiums as at
1 January 2016 32 421 590 {17 627 238) 14 794 352
Change in provision for unearned 17 881 837 (16 556 490) 1325348
premiums, net of reinsurance
Provision for unearned premiums as at
31 December 2016 50 303 427 {34183 730) 16119 700
22 RESERVES FOR INSURANCE LOSSES
RBNS IBNR Life 31 December
insurance 2017
provision Total
Provision for insurance losses 21355749 11 565 808 56 897 336 89818 893
Reinsurer's share in provision
forinsurance losses (935 048) (2 904 728) - (3839776)
Provision for in I , het
nsurance losses, ne 20 420 701 8661080 56897 336 85979117
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Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

NEIIC «UZBEKINVEST» (In thonsands UZS)
21 RESERVES FOR INSURANCE LOSSES(Continued)
RBNS IBNR Life 31 December
insurance 2017
provision Total
Provision for insurance losses, net 2760 522 3626165 34 463 466 40 850 153
of reinsurence for January 1
Increase/(decrease) in provision for 18 079 444 3932991 22433 870 44 446 305
insurance losses
Increase/(decrease) in reinsurer's
share in provision for insurance (419 265) 1101924 - 682 659
losses
Provision for insurance losses, net 20 420 701 8661080 56 897 336 85979 117
of reinsurance for December 31
RBNS IBNR Life 31 December
insurance 2016
provision Total
Provision forinsurance losses 3276 305 7632817 34 463 466 45 372 588
Reinsurer's share in provision (515 783) (4 006 652) . (4 522 435)
forinsurance losses
Provision for insurance losses, net 2 760 522 3626165 34 463 466 40 850 153
of reinsurance
REBNS IBNR Life 31 December
insurance 2016
provision Total
P . .
rovision for Insurance losses, net 4109 152 3321152 21262857 28 693 161
of reinsurence for January 1
Increase/(decrease) in provision for
. (1 265 654) 130 247 13 200 609 12 065 202
insurance losses
Increase/(decrease) in reinsurer's
share in provision forinsurance (82 978) 174 766 - 91 790
losses
Provision for i
rovision for insurance losses, net 2 760 522 3626165 34 463 466 40 850 153

of reinsurance for December 31
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Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
NEIIC «<UZBEKINVEST» (In thousands UZS)

23 OTHER LIABILITIES

31 December 31 December
2017 2016

Other financial liabilities
Payables to suppliers 537572 292670
Payables to employees ’ 483 254 401 135
Other accounts payable 4148 270 1490 840
Total other financial liabilities 5169 096 2 184 645
Other non-financial liabilities
Payables to budget and non-budget funds 2076472 1406 676
Accruals and deferred income 7 642 006 3 604 691
Total other non-financial liabilities 9718 478 5011 367
Total other liabilities 14 887 574 7196 012

24 EQUITY
Share capital

In February 1997, by the Decree of the President of the Republic of Uzbekistan, the share capital of the Group
was increased from the equivalent of 10 million US dollars to the equivalent of 60 million US dollars, i.e. 3 453
000 thousand sum.

In accordance with the Decree of the President of the Republic of Uzbekistan "On Measures for Further
Liberalization and Development of the Insurance Market" of January 31, 2002, all insutance companies
operating in the Republic of Uzbekistan were exempt from income tax for a period of 3 years untl January 31,
2005 of the year. According to the Decree, the funds, exempted from taxes at a nominal value of 2,189,070
thousand UZS, were classified in the authorized capital after the expiration of the tax exemption period.

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

inflation adjusted . Infiation adjusted
Nominal amount

Nominal amount
amount amount

) 5642 070 19 257 325 5642 070 19 257 325
Share capital

The effect of inflation on ordinary shares is accounted for in accordance with IAS 29 "Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies" ("IAS 29").

In accordance with TAS 29, the economy of the Republic of Uzbekistan was considered to be hyperinflationary
during 2005 and prior years. Since 1 January 2006, the economy of the Republic of Uzbekistan has ceased to
be considered as hyperinflationary, and the value of the Bank's non-monetaty assets, liabilities and equity
capital, presented in the measuring units current as at 31 December 2005, was used to generate incoming
balance balances as of 1 January 2006

Reserve for investment purposes

The Government of the Republic of Uzbekistan contributed to the Group a contribution of 24,779,214
thousand UZS, which is equivalent to 80,245 thousand US dollats, for the purpose of investing US $ 80,000,000
in UHC and US § 245,000 in AIG Uzbekistan Limited (formerly "Chartis Uzbekinvest Limited" ") located in
the UK. As indicated in Note 1, in 2009, both the UIIC shareholder, the Uzbekinvest National Export-Impott
Insurance Company (with 80% of the interest) and Ametican International Underwriters Overseas Ltd (with
a 20% interest), reduced their investments by 20,000 thousand dollars USA each. As a result, the Group became
the sole owner of ULLC with an authorized capital of 60,000 thousand US dollars. The group returned funds
to the Government of the Republic of Uzbekistan in the amount of 6,191,278 thousand UZS.
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NEIIC «UZBEKINVEST» (T thousands UZS)

24 EQUITY (Continuation)

On July 27, 2010, the Group reduced its interest in the UTIC to USD 50 million by a subsequent withdrawal
of USD 10 million of investments from the share capital and returned these funds to the Government of the
Republic of Uzbekistan in the amount of 3,133,338 thousand UZS. As a result of this transaction, the remaining
amount of the Group's contribution to the shate capital of UIIC was US $ 50,000 thousand, equivalent to
15,454,598 thousand UZS.

Special insurance reserve

By the Decree of the President of the Republic of Uzbekistan, the Company was exempt from income tax and
property tax for five years ending in February 2002. In accordance with this Decree, part of the Company's
profits and the released funds from the profits tax and property tax benefits are directed to replenish the
Company's share capital. After the authorized capital is fully formed, the released funds are sent to the Special
Insurance Reserve. As of May 1, 1999, the Company's authorized capital was fully formed, and from that
moment all released funds were sent to the Special Insurance Reserve.

In addition, in accordance with the Decree of the President of the Republic of Uzbekistan, the company was
also exempt from income tax on dividends and interest income from June 2008 for three years.

Excchange differences

Exchange differences - the difference from the transfer of net investment in UTIC from the functional currency
- the dollar - to the presentation currency of the Group - UZS. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, exchange
differences from translation of foreign units into the reporting currency were 404 853 500 thousand UZS and
160 424 000 thousand UZS, respectively.

Stabilization reserve

According to the Regulations of the Ministry of Finance No. 107 of November 20, 2008 on insurance resetves
of the insurer, insurance companies must create a stabilization reserve for CICL, CICLI and CICLC.
Stabilization reserve is formed due to the transfer of funds from undistributed profits to cover unforeseen
future losses of the Company. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the stabilization reserve was 2 471 529
thousand UZS and 3 141 237 thousand UZS, respectvely.

25 NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

Non-controlling interest in Total as at 31

h
Dependent companies the statutory fund Uncontrollable profit December
In thousands 2017
% of UZS
Bosh bino ishlatmasi LLC 25 25000 10 800 35800
Uzbekinvest Hayot LLC 20 1896 329 1295 596 3191925
Total non-controlling interest 1921 329 1 306 396 3227725

26 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lawsuits

From time to time, in the course of the Company's business, customers and counterparties may raise claims
against the Company. Management believes that as a result of the proceedings on them the Company will
not incur significant losses and, accordingly, no reserves have been created in the financial statements.

Taxation
Due to the existence in the tax legislation of Uzbekistan of norms permitting ambiguous intetpretation,

management's assessment of the facts of the Company's economic activities may not coincide with the
interpretation of these facts by the tax authorities.
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26 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES(Continued)

Taxation(Continued)

Tax authotities may take a more assertive position in interpteting legislation and determining the amount of
taxes, and operadons and activites that have not previously been challenged may be challenged. As a result,
taxes may be added, as well as fines and penalties. The five preceding calendar years remain open for
inspection by the tax authorities. Under certain circumstances, inspections may cover longer periods. The
Company's management believes that its interpretation of the relevant tax legislation is appropriate and the
Company's tax position is protected.

Liabilities on capital commitments

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company did not have any significant capital commitments.

Operating lease commitments

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company had no material Liabilities under operating leases.

Operating environment

The markets of developing countries, including the Republic of Uzbekistan, are subject to economic,
political, social, judicial and legislative risks, different from the risks of more developed markets. Laws and
regulations governing business in the Republic of Uzbekistan can change rapidly, there is the possibility of
their arbitrary interpretation. The future direction of the development of the Republic of Uzbekistan largely
depends on the tax and monetary policy of the state, the laws and regulations adopted, as well as changes in
the political situation in the country.

27 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties or transactions with related parties in accordance with the definition in IAS 24 "Related Party
Disclosures" are set out below.

When consideting the possible existence of relations between related parties, attention is paid to the
substance of the relationship, and not only to their legal design. As at 31 December 2017, the Company has
the following transactons with related parties:

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

Lease of Fixed assets 26 277 25 142
Loans and receivables 11998 4 389
Gross insurance premiums 122 024 948
Dividend income - 899475
Total 160 299 929 955

28 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In accordance with IFRS, the fait value is determined taking into account the price that would have been
received upon the sale of the asset or paid when transferring the obligation under a regular transaction
berween market participants as of the valuation date.

The fait value of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company recorded at fair value on a
permanent basis

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company are accounted for at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. The table below provides information on how the fair value of these financial assets
and financial liabilities is determined (in particular, the valuation technique (s) used and the inputs).
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28 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS(Continued)

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Deposits in banks 331 365 896 331 365 896 144 678 968 144 099 346
Loans and receivables 415005 320 415005 320 163 715 425 163 222 342

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not taken into account but the fair
value on an ongoing basis (but with a mandatory disclosute of fair value)

In the opinion of management of the Group, the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilites recorded in
the consolidated financial statements approximates their fair value.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities was determined in accordance with generally accepted
valuation models based on discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant initial data being the
discount rate that reflects market quotes for similar financial instruments with a similar maturity.

29 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk management is critical in insurance operations and is one of the main elements of the Company's business.
The main risks inherent in the Company's activities are insurance risk, credit risk, market tisk, operational risk
and liquidity risk. The following is a description of the Company's policy regarding the management of these
risks.

Insurance risk

The risk for any insurance contract is the possibility that, in the event of an insurance event, there will be an
uncertainty in the amount of the insurance claim. Due to the different characteristics of insurance contracts,
this risk is accidental and therefore unpredictable.

For the putposes of the portfolio of insurance contracts, where the probability theoty is applied in relation to
the cost and creation of reserves, the main risk to which the Group is exposed is the tisk that the actual
payments for claims will exceed the book value of insurance liabilities. This can happen if the frequency or
severity of claims is higher than estmated. Insurance cases are an irregular event, and the actual number and
amount of claims and benefits will differ from yeat to year from estimates made using statistical methods.

Factors that increase insurance risk include the inadequacy of risk diversification depending on the type and
amount of risk, geographic location and type of coverage of the insured.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the less the relative variability of
the result will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less susceptible to changes in any subset of the
portfolio.

The group has developed an insurance underwriting strategy that consists in diversifying the types of insurance
and the geography of the risks taken in order to achieve sufficient occupancy in each of these categories and
thereby reducing the variability of the expected result. The group included a significant margin in the cost of
premiums.

"The Group also has the right to refuse payment of a falsified claim ot claim arising from a policy where the
policyholder provided false information during the preparation of the policy statement and the insurance stage.

Insurance contracts are divided into five groups of risk: property and accidents, liability, political risks,
construction and installation works, life insurance. Liability insurance includes general liability insurance and
professional liability insurance. In addition, political risk insurance mainly includes insurance against
confiscation, deptivation of property and nationalization, which are issued exclusively by the UIIC. During
2016, insurance risks for these groups were not concentrated on any of the individual cutrencies; In the total
portfolio, there is a balance between customets who are legal entities and individuals.

Given these circumstances, the Group intends to achieve the required level of risk diversification and
reinsurance in order to minimize risk.
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29 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY (Continuation)

Settlement of claims for the Group's policies occurs as they arise. The Group takes all reasonable steps to
obtain the necessary information regarding risks and claims. However, if one takes into account the possibility
of uncertainty in the creation of reserves for claims, the final result may differ significantly from the original
obligation. Obligations under these contracts include IBNR.

Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into obligatory and facultative reinsurance agreements
with Uzbek and foreign reinsurers. Contracts for teinsurance do not exempt the Company from its obligations
to the insured. The Company assesses the financial position of its reinsurers and monitors the concentration
of credit risk arising in similar geographic regions, activities ot economic characteristics of reinsurers, in order
to minimize the risks of significant losses due to insolvency of the reinsurer.

Investment risks

The Company's investment policy follows several ptinciples based on the level of income and the level of
acceptable risk at a certain point in time. The activity of insurance companies in Uzbekistan is under strict
supervision. State Insurance Supervision and the Company are not allowed to be a professional patticipant in
the securities market.

The investment pottfolio of the Company consists of financial instruments that are selected according to the
rates of return, maturity and the level of investment risk. The investment portfolio formed in this way provides
an even return during the investment period. Investment income is usually reinvested to increase the volume
of the investment portfolio.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that one of the parties to a transaction with a financial
instrument will cause the other party to incur financial losses as a result of default on the contractual obligation.
The main areas of activity where the Group is exposed to credit risk are:

. exposure to corporate bonds;

. the share of reinsurers in insurance liabilities;

. amounts receivable from reinsurers regarding previously paid claims;
. amounts receivable from holders of insurance contracts;

. amounts receivable from insurance intermediaries; and

. counterparty tisk in relation to derivative transactions.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. However, this does not relieve the Group from being a primary
insurer. In the event that the reinsurer is unable to pay claims for any reason, the Group remains responsible
for payments to the policyholders. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is reviewed annually by reviewing their
financial sustainability before each contract is dtawn up. The Insurance Committee of the Group assesses the
creditworthiness of all reinsurers and intermediaries by reviewing credit ratings provided by rating agencies and
other publicly available financial information. The Committee also receives details of the history of recent
payments and the status of any negotiations between the Group and these third parties.

The Group monitors credit risk by setting limits on one counterparty or a group of counterparties, as well as
by setting limits on geographical and industry segments. Such tisks are monitored regulatly, with limits being
reviewed at least once a year. Limits of credit risk by category and territory are approved on a quartetly basis
by the Board of Directors. Credit risk management is carried out through regular analysis of the ability of
existing and potential borrowers to repay interest payments and principal amounts of debt, and, if necessary,
by changing credit limits. Credit risk management is also carried out by obtaining collateral and guarantees of
companies and individuals.

The most significant credit risk is a decrease in the creditworthiness of the Group's investment portfolio.
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29 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY (Continuation)

Maximum exposure to credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk can vary significantly, depending on the individual risks
inherent in specific assets and on general market risks.

The following table presents the maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets. For financial assets
tecorded on balance sheet accounts, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the book value of these assets, not
including offsets of assets and liabilities and collateral.

The maximum amount of creditor risk for 31 December 2017 is as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Deposits in banks
Financial assets at fair
value

through profitorloss
Investments available

for sale
Loans and receivables

Insurance and reinsurance
receivable
Other financial assets

Maximum

31 December 2017

Net exposure Collateral

TOTAL ANANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Deposits in banks
Financial assets at fair
value

through profitor loss
Investments available

for sale
Loans and receivables

Insurance and reinsurance
receivable
Other financial assets

Net
Exposure Offset after offset pledged el exposure
19 429 467 - 19429 467 - 19 429 467
331 365 896 - 331 365 896 - 331 365896
415005 320 - 415 005 320 - 415 005 320
48 588 892 - 48 588 892 - 48 588 892
1996 533 - 1996 533 - 1996 533
14 429 009 - 14 429 009 - 14 429 009
2 879 348 - 2 879 348 - 2879 348
833 694 465 - 833 694 465 - 833 694 465
The maximum amount of creditor tisk for 31 December 2016 is as follows:
31 December 2016

Maximum Off Net exposure Collateral
Exposure ot after offset pledged Net exposure
7 225149 - 7 225149 - 7 225149
144 099 346 - 144 099 346 - 144 099 346
163 222 342 - 163222 342 - 163 222 342
38563324 - 38563 324 - 38 563 324
1632 150 - 1632150 - 1632150
3825 367 - 3 825 367 - 3 825 367
6 589 261 - 6 589 261 - 6 589 261
365 156 939 - 365 156 939 - 365 156 939

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets are classified based on current credit ratings assigned by internationally recognized rating
agencies. The highest possible rating is AAA. The investment level of financial assets cotresponds to the
ratings from AAA to BBB, assigned by international rating agencies. Financial assets with a rating lower than
BBB refer to the speculative level.
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NEIIC «UZBEKINVEST» (In thousands UZS)
29 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY (Continuation)
31 December
<AAA <BBB <CCC Not rated 2017
Total
Cash and cash equivalents 745 398 18 684 069 - - 19 429 467
Deposits in banks - 331 365896 - - 331 365 896
Financial assets atfair value 415 005 320 ) ) ) 415 005 320
through profitor loss
Investments available - - - 48588892 48 588 892
for sale
Loans and receivables - 800 000 - 1196 533 1996 533
Insura_nce and reinsurance ) } ) 14 429 009 14 429 009
receivable
Other financial assets 96 282 571179 - 2211888 2 879 349
TOTAL ANANCIAL
ASSETS 415 847 000 351 421 144 - 66 426 322 833 694 466
31 December
<AAA <BBB <CCC Not rated 2016
Total
Cash and cash equivalents 668218 6 556 931 - - 7 225 149
Deposits in banks - 143 519 724 579622 - 144 099 346
Financial assets at fair value 163 222 342 - - - 163 222 342
through profitorloss
Investments available - - - 38563324 38 563 324
for sale
Loans and receivables - 800 000 - 832150 1632150
Insura_nce and reinsurance A ) i 3 825 367 3 825 367
receivable
Other financial assets 96 282 571179 - 2245 301 2912762
TOTAL ANANCIAL ASSETS 163 986 842 151 447 834 579 622 45466 142 361 480 441

The Group's credit tisk is mainly concentrated in the Republic of Uzbekistan and the United Kingdom. The
degree of credit risk is constantly monitored to ensure compliance with limits and creditworthiness in

accordance with the Company's approved risk management policy.
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Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

NEIIC «UZBEKINVEST»

(In thousands UZS)

29 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY (Continuation)

Geographical concentration

Management monitors risk associated with changes in legislation and assesses its impact on the Group's
operations. This approach allows the Group to minimize possible losses from changes in the investment
climate in the Republic of Uzbekistan.

Information on the geographical concentration of assets and liabilities is presented in the following tables:

FANANCIAL ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Deposits in banks
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Investments available for sale
Loans and receivables
Insurance and reinsurance
receivable
Other financial assets
TOTAL ANANCIAL
ASSETS

ANANCIAL UABILITIES:

Insurance and reinsurance
payable

Other financial liabilities

TOTAL FAINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

OPEN BALANCE SHEET
POSITION

Republic of Non-OECD . 31 December
Uzbekistan countries OECD countries 2017
Total
18 320 184 - 1109 283 19 429 467
250165196 81 200 700 - 331 365896
- - 415 005 320 415 005 320
47 204 211 1 384 681 - 48 588 892
1996 533 - - 1996 533
13 550 551 - 878 458 14 429 009
2783 066 - 96 282 2 879 348
334019741 82 585 381 417 089 343 833 694 465
16 406 396 555 466 16 961 862
15 899610 - 1569 317 17 468 927
32 306 006 - 2124 783 34430789
301713735 82 585 381 414 964 560 799 263 676
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Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

NEIIC «UZBEKINVEST» (In thousands UZS)
29 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY (Continuation)
Republic of Non-OECD OECD countries 31 December
Uzbekistan countries 2016
Total
ANANCIAL ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 5447 648 - 1777 501 7 225149
Deposits in banks 115 999 546 28 099 800 - 144 099 346
Financial assets at fair value } _ 163 222 342 163 222 342
through profit or loss
Investments available for sale 37 178 643 1 384 681 - 38 563 324
Loans and receivables 1632 150 - - 1632150
Insurance and reinsurance 946 908 ) 878 458 3 825 367
receivable
Other financial assets 6 492 979 - 06 282 6 589 261
TOTAL ANANCIAL
ASSETS 169 697 875 29 484 481 165 974 584 365 156 940
FANANCIAL LIABILITIES:
Insurance and reinsurance > 464 382 ) 555 466 3019 848
payable
Other financial liabilities 903 883 - 1569 317 2473 200
TOTAL ANANCIAL
LIABILITIES 3 368 265 - 2124782 5 493 047
OPEN BALANCE SHEET
POSITION 166 329 610 29 484 481 163 849 802 359 663 893
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise may have difficulty in attracting funds needed to meet all requirements
for obligations associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may atise as a result of the inability to quickly
realize assets at their fair value; or the inability of the countetparty to pay off its contractual obligations; or
earlier than expected, the time for payment of insurance obligations; or inability to generate cash flows as
expected.

The main liquidity risk facing the Group is the daily cash requirements for its available cash resources in respect
of payments arising from insurance contracts.

The Group manages liquidity risk through the Group's separate policy to manage this risk, which determines
what is the liquidity risk; Establishes the minimum ratio of funds to meet emergency payment requirements;
Establishes contingency financing plans; Determines the sources of funding and the events that will bring the
plan into action; Concentrates funding sources; Reports on the exposure to liquidity risk and viclations to the
supervisory authorities; Monitors compliance with liquidity risk policies and reviews liquidity risk management
policies for relevance and compliance with changes in the operating environment.
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Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
NEIIC «UZBEKINVEST»

29 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY (Continuation)

(In thousands UZS)

The Group does not include insurance reserves in the liquidity analysis, including amounts fror_n reinsurers,
classified as reinsurance assets, since reserves do not have a certain maturity. In addition, actual liabilities may
differ from the reserve amounts and are not included in the table above.

Discounted liabilities presented in the previous tables coincide with the amounts of undiscounted obligations
due to the fact that all liabilities are short-term.

Financial assets available-for-sale are represented by maturity dates, although they are faitly liquid and can be
sold at fair value for three months if necessary.

Market risk

The company is also exposed to market risks associated with the presence of open positions in interest rates
and currencies subject to general and specific market fluctuations. The Group manages market risk by
periodically evaluating potential losses as a result of negative changes in the market environment, and by
establishing and maintaining adequate limits on the amount of allowable losses and the requirements for the
rate of return.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of 2 financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group is exposed to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates that affect its financial position and cash

flows.

uzs usbD EUR Other 31 December
usp1-= EUR1 = 2017
8,120.07 UZS 9,624.72 UZS Total

ANANCIAL ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 8 293 717 10 303 837 255 573 576 340 19 429 467
Deposits in banks 56 588 123 274777773 - - 331 365 896
Financial assets atfair

value through profit or - 415 005 320 - - 415 005 320

loss
Investments available

for sale 47 204 211 1384 681 - - 48 588 892
Loans and receivables 1996 533 - - - 1996 533
Insurance and reinsurance

receivable 14173 259 255 750 - - 14 429 009
Other financial assets 2879 348 - - - 2879348
TOTAL ANANCIAL

ASSETS 131 135 191 701 727 361 255573 576 340 833 694 465
ANANCIAL LIABILITIES:
Insurance and reinsurance

payable 2418 998 14 542 864 - - 16 961 862
Other financial liabilities 17 468 927 - - - 17 468 927
TOTAL ANANCIAL

LIABILITIES 19 887 925 14 542 864 - - 34 430 789
OPEN BALANCE SHEET

POSITION 111 247 266 687 184 497 255573 576 340 799 263 676
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UZS
NEIIC «UZBEKINVEST» {In thousands )
29 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY (Continuation)
uzs uspD EUR Other 31 December
usD1 = EUR1= 2016
3.231.48 UZS 3,419.23 UZS Total
ANANCIAL ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 4 426 021 2729452 3820 65 856 7225149
Deposits in banks 30674912 113028 698 385736 - 144 099 346
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or - 163 222 342 - - 163 222 342
loss
Investments available ) 38 563 324 ) ) 18 563 324
for sale
Loans and receivables 1632 150 - - - 1632 150
Insurance and reinsurance 2 940 268 885 099 ) ) 3825 367
receivable
Other financial assets 6 588 261 - - - 6 589 261
TOTAL ANANCIAL 46 262 612 318 428 915 399 556 65 856 365156 939
ASSETS
ANANCIAL LIABILITIES:
Insurance and reinsurance 737 909 2 281 939 i ) 3019 848
payable
Other financial liabilities 10170 311 43 230 13 211 717 10 227 469
TOTAL ANANCIAL
LIABILITIES 10 908 220 2 325168 13 211 717 13 247 317
OPEN BALANCE SHEET
POSITION 35 354 392 316 103 747 386 345 65139 351 909 622

Analysis of sensitivity to foreign exchange risk

The tabie below summarizes the sensitivity of the Group to 151% and 15% of the increase and decrease in the
sum to the US dollar and euro as at 31 December 2017 and 2016, 181% and 11%, respectively. The Group's
management believes that, given the current economic situation in the Republic of Uzbekistan, it is possible
for the sum to fluctuate against the US dollar and euro at a rate of up to 25%. This level of sensitivity is used
internally in the preparation of foreign exchange risk repotts for key management personnel of the Company
and represents management's assessment of possible changes in exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only foreign currency amounts available at the end of the period, when converted at the end of the year, rates
that are changed by 25% are used as compared to those effective as at 31 December 2017 and 2016, respectively.

As at 31 December 2017

+25%

-25%

As at 31 December 2016

+25% -25%

in USD Impact on net profit and equity 171796 124

(171 796 124)

As at 31 December 2017

+25%

-25%

79025937

(79 025 837)

As at 31 December 2016

+25% -25%

in EUR Impact on net profit and equity €63 893

(63 883)

96 586 {96 586"




Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
NEIIC «UZBEKINVEST» (Tn thousands UZS)

29 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY (Continuation)

Limitatdons of sensitivity analysis

The above tables reflect the effect of a change in the main assumption, while other assumptions remain
unchanged. In fact, there is 2 connection between assumptions and other factors. It should also be noted that
the sensitivity is nonlinear, so interpolation or extrapolation of the results should not be performed.

The sensitivity analysis does not take into account that the Group actively manages assets and liabilities. In
addition to this, the financial position of the Company may vary depending on the changes taking place in the
market. For example, the Group's strategy in the area of financial risk management is aimed at managing the
risk of market volatility. In the event of sharp negative price fluctuations in the securities market, management
can resort to such methods as selling investrments, changing the composition of the investment portfolio, and
also to other methods of protecton. Consequently, the change in assumptions may not have an impact on
liabilities and significantly affect the assets recorded on the balance sheet at the market price. In this situation,
different methods of valuation of assets and Labilities can lead to significant fluctuations in the amount of
capital.

Other limitations in the above sensitivity analysis include the use (with the aim of disclosing the potential risk)
of hypothetical market movements, which are just the Company's forecast of forthcoming market changes that
cannot be predicted with any degree of certainty. Also a limitation is the assumption that all interest rates change
in an identical way.

30 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

According to the Decree of the President of the Republic of Uzbekistan No. PD-3583 of 5 March 2018 "On
the Organization of the Ministry of Physical Education and Sports of the Republic of Uzbekistan”, the
Ministry of Physical Education and Sports of the Republic of Uzbekistan is located at 2, A.Kodiriy Street,
Tashkent.

In this regard, the national export-import insurance company "Uzbekinvest” was transferred to the building,
which is on the balance of the Tashkent region Prosecutot's Office and located at the address: Tashkent city,
Chilonzor district, Central Massif, Chupon-ota street.

The national export-import insurance company "Uzbekinvest" developed a project of the decision, which was
submitted for consideration to the Cabinet of Ministers of the Republic of Uzbekistan. This decision
provides for the transfer of part of the building on the balance of the Company, located at the address 2, A.
Kodiriy street to the balance of the Ministry of Physical Education and Sports of the Republic of Uzbekistan,
as well as the transfer of part of the building on the balance of the Tashkent region Prosecutor's Office,
located at the address Tashkent, Chilanzar district, Chupon-ota street of the Company.

At present, this project is undet consideration of the Government of the Republic of Uzbekistan.
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